



## April 2011

### This Issue

April Program	page 2
Monthly Meeting	page 3
Mark Your Calendar	page 3
Members News	page 4-5
Welcome Members	page 5
Get well wishes	page 5
Condolences	page 5
Opportunities	page 5-6
Shows to See	page 6
President's Message	page 6
By Laws	page 7-9
WAA Organization	page 10

### April Presenter



**Susan Barnes**

# The Willingboro Art Alliance Sketchbook

## Art work by Susan Barnes



Just Dunes

**Celebrating 47 years**  
**Founded 1964 - Incorporated 1965**  
**The oldest art organization in Burlington County**  
**Website: [www.willingboroart.org](http://www.willingboroart.org)**

# OUR APRIL PROGRAM

## SUSAN BARNES



Snow in the Woods

S. Barnes

Susan Barnes, a native of New Jersey, began painting over thirty years ago. Her career took a different direction while raising her children. During that period she designed and created hand wrought jewelry in silver and gold. In 1995, she returned to painting starting with pastels before retuning to oils.

Seeking her own educational path, at Fleisher Art memorial in Philadelphia and by attending various workshops, she has learned from a generation of painters that studied under the tutelage of Arthur DeCosta at the Pennsylvania Academy of Fine Arts.

Seascapes and landscapes, which the artist describes as representational with a focus on atmosphere and mood, are her most recurring themes. Her inspiration comes from her love of the coastal areas of the state where she has spent summers since childhood. She wants to enable the viewer to step inside the work, to feel the sun and smell the sea.

Recently she has been experimenting with some non-toxic printmaking methods. Gelatin monoprints, which show painterly brushstrokes and create depth through subtle tonal changes, are done in monochrome. The choice of monochrome came about not only for the quality it conveys but also to draw a distinct difference between the monoprints and her paintings done in oil.

The artist is the recipient of numerous awards, including a purchase award by Burlington County for their permanent collection. She has served as juror for the Cape May County Art Association Annual show and the Riverfront Renaissance Center for the Arts in Millville, and as curator for Medford Leas Artist on Tour at the Medford Art Center. Memberships include the Philadelphia Sketch Club and the American Society of Marine Artists. Her paintings grace the walls of many private collectors throughout the county.

She is represented by the following galleries in New Jersey:

North End Trilogy, Barnegat Light, LBI  
East End Gallery, Margate  
William Ris Gallery, Stone Harbor  
Farnsworth Gallery, Bordentown  
Creative Genius, Medford  
Simply Art & Framing, Cranford  
Swell Colors Studio Gallery, Beach Haven, LBI



## Mark Your Calendar

**April 2, 2011**

Maureen Gass-Brown  
HFA Reception  
5pm – 8pm

**April 6, 2011**

**WAA Monthly Members  
Meeting 7:00pm**

**April 9, 2011**

Carol Fitzpatrick  
Palmyra Cove Reception  
1:30pm – 3:30pm

**April 14, 2011**

Center for the Arts  
Watercolor - Reception  
7:00pm – 9:00pm

**April 20, 2011**

Carmen Altopiedi Memorial  
Show w/Life class members  
Reception  
6pm – 8pm

**April 27, 2011**

**WAA Monthly Board  
Meeting  
4:30pm – 6:30pm**

## April Monthly Meeting

**\*\*\*Room 300, Kennedy Center\*\*\***

**Levitt Parkway & Kennedy Way, Willingboro**

**Wednesday,  
April 6, 7:00 PM**

**Guest Presenter  
Susan Barnes**



**Refreshments for our April meeting  
will be provided by:  
Marge Naperski and Jacqueline Myles-  
Vargas**

***EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING WILL BE  
APRIL 27 – 4:30PM-6:30PM  
ROOM 300 AT THE KENNEDY CENTER***

### **APRIL WORKSHOPS**

(all levels welcome)

**9AM, Wednesdays, Room 300, Kennedy Center**

<b>April 6</b>	<b>Calligraphy (Beautiful Writing)</b>
<b>April 13</b>	<b>Pastels – Portraits</b>
<b>April 20</b>	<b>Critique</b>
<b>April 27</b>	<b>Flowers - Watercolor</b>

Most Wednesday workshop sessions are planned with a specific medium or technique to explore, but you are welcome to just come and paint. Materials and paints are supplied in many of the classes. A \$1.00 Donation is requested from all participants in the workshop to help in purchasing art supplies. To check out one of the many books or videos from our library, see our librarians, Bill Devine or Rene Yohannan.

**LIFE WORKSHOPS ARE HELD EACH MONDAY FROM  
10 TO 1 – CONTACT MARCIA STEINBOCK FOR  
INFORMATION AT [marcia@ucountonus.com](mailto:marcia@ucountonus.com)**

**COSTUME/PORTRAIT WORKSHOPS ARE HELD  
EACH THURSDAY FROM 10 TO 1 – CONTACT  
DENISE MCDANIEL FOR INFORMATION AT  
[dmmmmc@comcast.net](mailto:dmmmmc@comcast.net) (Walk-ins are welcomed)**

## Images of WAA Members Art Work



Bog Trail by  
Sherry McGrath



Old Victrola  
By Linda Hollinger



Jazz Group by Ben Cohen

## MEMBERS NEWS:

- **Carol Fitzpatrick** will have a solo art exhibit at the Palmyra Cove Nature Center from April 1 thru April 30. A reception will be held at the Nature Center on Saturday, April 9 from 1:30 to 3:30 pm. The Center is located under the Tacony Palmyra Bridge just off Temple Blvd, which runs parallel to Rt. 73. To see a map go to [www.palmyracove.org](http://www.palmyracove.org)
- **HA Jennings** was the featured poet at the Hopkins House Poetry in the Park Series: "Wisdom of the Ancestors" for Black History Month and in Moorestown at the Barnes and Noble Poetry Round Table where a documentary on poetry was being filmed.
- **Susan Barnes** had two works juried into the Philadelphia Sketch Club's Art of the Flower Show. Her gelatin monotype "Flower in Glass" received the 3rd place Award. Two of her paintings were also in the Philadelphia Plastic Club's Small Worlds Show.
- **SaraLee Pindar** will have photos on display at the High Street Grill in April and May. One of her photographs was accepted for the Vision of Hope Show at the Canal Frames and Crafts Gallery in Washington Crossing. The show will benefit the Philadelphia & Susquehanna Chapter of the Make-A-Wish Foundation.
- **Arleen Potter** was in the Burlington County Art Guild Palmyra Cove Show: "Nature" in March.
- **Doris Peltzman** will be one of the featured artists at the Main Line Art Center at 746 Panmure Road, Haverford, P.A. for their Fine Arts Exhibit and Sale. The exhibition will be held from April 15 through May. A preview party is scheduled for April 15 and the exhibition opens officially April. She was one of the featured artists exhibiting at Artists House Gallery in Phila, PA in March. She also had paintings exhibited in The Philadelphia. Sketch Club's Art of the Flower Show and The Plastic Club's Small Worlds Show.
- **Maureen Gass-Brown's** upcoming April exhibit at Home Fine Art Gallery runs from March 30 through May 1. Reception: April 2 from 5 to 8 p.m. Several reproductions will be raffled off. In addition, she has been juried into the Rittenhouse Square Fine Arts Annual for the 15th consecutive year that will take place from June 3 through June 5.
- **Norman Gaffin, Pamela Levin, Eleanor Mink, SaraLee Pindar, Irvine Spracklin, John Tegley and Ed Messey** have entries in the Burlington County College Students and Community Artist Show 99 *Shades of Grey* at the BCC Gallery on High Street, Mt Holly, through April 8, 2010.
- **Joy Hoffman** has work in the Burlington County Art Guild's Members "Nature Show" and work at Chairville Art Show in Medford.

## Welcome New Member

*Fran Hubbell  
Carrie Chein*

## Get well wishes go out to:

*Sandy Jones  
Betty Richter  
Bert Sacker*

## We wish you all a speedy recovery



**Our thoughts and  
prayers go out to  
Ellie Mink on the  
passing of her  
mother**

**and**

**to the family of  
Jack Tucker who  
was husband to  
Agnes Tucker and  
stepfather to  
Sandy Jones**

## MEMBERS NEWS: (continued)

- **AR Tucker** has two pieces of art in the WAA Members Show at Smithville Mansion, and she will have a painting in the Tuckerton Seaport Show in April. She and her daughter, **Sandy Jones**, will be having a two-person show at Wealth Management on Marne Hwy in Moorestown during the months of April and May. A tentative reception is set for Sunday, May 1 from 4 to 6 pm.
- **Sandra L. Jones** had her painting "Afternoon at Howell Farm" juried into the "Lambertville & Surrounding Areas" exhibit at the Coryell Gallery in Lambertville, NJ. She had two pieces in the Willingboro Art Alliance Member Show at the Smithville Mansion, in Eastampton, NJ. She will also have 12 framed pieces on exhibit at the "38th Annual Yellow Springs Art Show" in Yellow Springs, PA., which runs April 30th – May 15th. See [www.yellowsprings.org](http://www.yellowsprings.org) for more info. Sandy will also have a painting in the Tuckerton Seaport show in April. On June 17th, Sandy will be giving a one-day Tempera Resist workshop at the Pine Shores Art Association in Manahawkin, NJ. For workshop details, call 609 597-3557. She also gave a Tempera Resist demonstration for the Art Guild of Delaware County in Media, PA in February.

Submit your artwork for inclusion in future Sketchbooks. Each month we will be featuring artwork by WAA artists in the newsletter. We have had a great response and many artists have submitted work to the editor. So if you don't see your work in this issue, it will be in future issues. If you have not submitted work, send a jpg to [dfascenda@comcast.net](mailto:dfascenda@comcast.net)



Please email our editor with art news for  
**May Sketchbook April 20th**  
to [dfascenda@comcast.net](mailto:dfascenda@comcast.net) or call  
(609) 859-0607 and leave a voice message

## OPP-ART-UNITIES:

- The **Historic Medford Village Association** (HMVA) is accepting applications to participate in their 21st Annual Summer Art, Wine & Music Festival scheduled for Sunday, June 5<sup>th</sup> from 12-4:00 pm. The Event will be held along historic and scenic Main Street (Route 541) in Medford Village. All types of artists and crafters are invited to apply. A tent is required. Items sold by artists must be hand-crafted. The deadline to submit **April 30<sup>th</sup>, 2011**. Applications will be made available at [www.theheartofmedford.com](http://www.theheartofmedford.com).
- The **High Street Grill** in Mt. Holly is again looking for artists to exhibit for their 2011 schedule. They are in need of photography now to fill their bar room. If you would like the opportunity to show your work there, please contact Nancy DeWitt at [info@highstreetgrill.net](mailto:info@highstreetgrill.net)

## President's Message:

I want to thank all those gallery sitters at Smithville "Members Show" for their participation. This participation was a stepping stone for future involvement with the Parks Department of Burlington County and was a sign that the WAA welcomes opportunities for further out-reach to the community.

Further, the board has approved after school workshops at the JFK Recreation Center. These workshops are a chance for our members to earn some income. Several members have already signed on board. I am asking any member who wishes to conduct art classes to contact me for details.

RJ Haas

WAA President

### 2011 Kennedy Building in Willingboro Closure

Friday, April 22 -- Good Friday  
Sunday, April 24 -- Easter  
Monday, May 30 -- Memorial Day  
Monday, July 4 -- Independence Day  
Monday, Sept. 5 -- Labor Day  
Monday, Oct. 10 -- Columbus Day  
Friday, Nov. 11 -- Veterans' Day  
Thursday & Friday, Nov. 24 -25 -- Thanksgiving  
Sunday, Dec. 25 -- Christmas  
Monday, Dec. 26 -- Day after Christmas

### Inclement Weather Information

To see if the building is closed due to inclement weather, please call **609-877-2200 ext.1116** and a live person will answer.

## OPP-ART-UNITIES: (continued)

- Artist Community Day (FREE OPEN STUDIO) April 15, May 20, June 17, 12-4pm - Bring your supplies and work with other artists. Share ideas and work together. The **Medford Arts Center** offers this the third Friday of every month.
- The **Juried Victorian Art Show** is being held at the Smithville Mansion Annex Art Gallery from May 1 to May 31. A \$20.00 non-refundable entry fee per artist. Delivery: April 23 or April 25 from 11 am – 3pm. Reception: May 1 in conjunction with the Victorian Games event from 12 to 3 pm. For information call 609 265-5287 or email [rhaas@burlington.nj.us](mailto:rhaas@burlington.nj.us)
- Now accepting applications for the **8th Annual Riverview Estates Fine Arts & Peach Festival & Sale** scheduled for August 6, 2011 from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. For prospectus go to the website at [www.riverviewestates.org](http://www.riverviewestates.org). This is a juried art festival.
- **Bucks County Visitor Center** has space in their theatre. The space is free and they host expos and seminars throughout the year. There is no commission involved. Located at 3207 Street Road, in Bensalem, and open 7 days a week 9-5. Any interested artists can contact Liz Holford at 215 639-0300 x238 or [lholford@visitbuckscounty.com](mailto:lholford@visitbuckscounty.com)
- **Downtown Toms Rivers 3rd Annual Arts & Music Festival 2011** - Deadline: April 21. Awards presented on May 14 at 4:00 PM. Interested artists should submit two images of work for sale at the show to [tomsriverartfest@yahoo.com](mailto:tomsriverartfest@yahoo.com), along with their contact information, expected price for the pieces, and media in which the artist works. \$60 Booth Fee applies. Checks should be made payable to Att: Arts & Music Festival. Downtown Toms River Business Development Corp. 218 Main Street, Toms River, NJ 08753.

## SHOWS TO SEE:

- **The Philadelphia Sketch Club** 148<sup>th</sup> Annual Exhibition of Small Oil Paintings reception: April 10 from 2 to 4 pm.
- **99 Shades of Grey, Burlington County College Student Gallery and Art Store** – open until April 8 located at 1 High Street, Mount Holly.
- **12<sup>th</sup> Annual Student Art Exhibition, Burlington County College Student Gallery and Art Store** – open until June 30 located at 1 High Street, Mount Holly.
- **2011 Juried Works On Paper Exhibition – Medford Arts Center** from April 1-May 22, 2011. Reception: Friday, April 1 at 6 pm. Contact Person: Tracey Femiano email: [tfemiano@aol.com](mailto:tfemiano@aol.com).
- **Carmen Altopiedi Memorial Show – JFK Recreation Center** from April 2 until July 9. Reception: April 20 from 6 to 8 pm.
- **Daffodil Day** extravaganza on Saturday, April 16. The town-wide event will take place from 9 am to 3 pm in Mount Holly.
- **Center for the Arts – Annual Watercolor Exhibition** from April 4 until April 25. Reception: April 14 from 7 to 9 pm.

# REVISED BY LAWS TO BE VOTED ON AT APRIL MEETING

## WILLINGBORO ART ALLIANCE BYLAWS – Updated February 2011

### Article 1. Name

The name of the organization is "Willingboro Art Alliance," hereinafter referred to as "WAA."

### Article II Object

Section 1. To promote cultural and advancement in the field of fine arts and crafts in Willingboro and surrounding areas.

Section 2. To promote cooperation and fraternity of artists and interested parties in the field of art.

Section 3. To sponsor, when able, deserving young artists who seek professional training in art.

Section 4. To disseminate authentic information, by lectures and professional guidance and to conduct exhibitions and in other ways further the interests of art.

### Article III. Organization, Membership, Dues

Section 1. The WAA adult membership shall consist of persons 18 years and older participating in, or interested in, fine arts and crafts.

Section 2. The WAA junior membership shall consist of persons under 18.

Section 3. The dues structure shall be set by the Executive Committee and approved by the membership at a general meeting.

Section 4. The membership year runs from January 1 through December 31.

Section 5. The Willingboro Art Alliance is a non-profit organization.

Section 6.

- A. A "Program" is a presentation other than and in addition to the internal regularly scheduled volunteer-led sessions such as workshops, life class, library, etc. to be held in Room 300, Kennedy Senior Center or another area designated by the WAA Board
- B. Program Chair will secure and schedule appropriate programs, determine compensation to the presenter(s) based on budget consideration and at the discretion of the Chair. "Program" presenters may be members of WAA or non-members.

### Article IV. Officers and Their Election

Section 1. The officers of the WAA shall be President, First Vice President, Second Vice President, Corresponding Secretary, Recording Secretary, and Treasurer. These officers shall be elected annually in November, to assume office at the January meeting. No officer shall be elected to the same office for more than two (2) consecutive terms except when there is a 2/3 vote by the general membership favoring another term.

Section 2. Nominations will be made by the Nominating Committee and may also be made from the floor. The consent of each candidate must be obtained before his/her name can be placed in nomination.

Section 3. A vacancy occurring in any office, except the President's, shall be filled by presidential appointment. A vacancy occurring in the Presidency shall be automatically filled by the Vice President.

Section 4. A Nominating Committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President at least three (3) months prior to elections.

### Article V. Duties of Officers

Section 1. The President shall:

- A. Preside at all meetings of WAA
- B. Present the views of the Executive Committee at the meetings
- C. Appoint chairpersons of the committees
- D. Be a member ex-officio of all committees
- E. Perform other duties commensurate with his/her office
- F. Be a member of the Executive Committee during tenure of the Next President
- G. Chair the Executive Committee
- H. Be responsible for obtaining information from all Coordinators on a monthly basis
- I. Submit budget to board for approval
- J. Responsible for Liaison with JFK facility

Section 2. The First Vice President shall:

- A. Assume the duties of the President during his/her absence.
- B. Succeed to office of President in the event of a vacancy
- C. Maintain oversight of all WAA exhibitions.
  - a. Plan and schedule all exhibitions and shows
  - b. Collect and pay all entrance fees and keep records of entrants, sales, etc.
  - c. Set fees and rules for each exhibition or show
  - d. Perform all necessary activities and setups associated with each exhibition or show
  - e. Work with the Publicity/Public Relations Committee to send out notices as required
  - f. Seek donor funding when required
  - g. Submit budget to board for approval

Section 3. The Second Vice President shall:

- A. Perform all duties as assigned by the President
- B. Organize and Chair WAA Scholarship team
- C. Work with outside organizations to alert schools to the availability of the scholarship
  - a. Send out notices to the schools
- D. Select judges for the Teen Arts Show
- E. Receive notices from the winner regarding acceptance into an appropriate higher educational facility
- F. Verify eligibility of award winner and expedite payment for award winner.
- G. Submit budget to board for approval
- H. Scholarship Coordinator
  - a. To assist in planning Teen Art Exhibition and Show
  - b. To send out notices and work with schools to notify students of scholarship
  - c. To arrange for judges
  - d. To verify eligibility of recipient and initiate payment of award

Section 4. The Treasurer shall:

- A. Present a statement of the disbursements and income of the WAA at each regular business meeting
- B. Be responsible for issuing checks for necessary board processing
- C. Collect dues and notify the Membership committee of received dues
- D. Handle all financial matters as directed by the President.
- E. Maintain all financial records.
- F. Arrange for a yearly audit of the WAA account
- G. Review the yearly budget with the officers

Section 5. The Corresponding Secretary shall:

- A. Conduct all correspondence at the direction of the President
- B. Keep a file of all WAA correspondence, and copies supplied by the committee chairpersons

Section 6. The Recording Secretary shall:

- A. Keep the minutes and records of all meetings
- B. Take roll at business meetings
- C. Maintain a file of activities
- D. Inform officers, chairpersons and Executive Committee members of meetings, giving dates, places and times.

Section 7. At the discretion of the Executive Committee, if only one secretarial position is filled, the two positions may be combined.

Section 8. The officers of the WAA must discuss new ideas with the Executive Committee before presenting them to the members.

Section 9. Checks will be signed by any two of the Treasurer, President and First Vice President. Two signatures are required on checks.

Section 10. Remission of Duty of Officers

Any elected officer who fails to perform his/her duties properly as outlined herein or who is absent from three consecutive business meetings may be asked by the Executive Committee to resign. If the officer is unwilling to resign, he/she may be removed from office at a regular monthly members meeting according to the following: at the meeting where there are 20 or more paid members in attendance; a majority vote is reached and the membership was previously informed of voting to occur.

#### **Article VI. Meetings**

Section 1. There shall be at least eight regular members meetings of the WAA each year. The dates and times shall be set by the Executive Committee.

Section 2. All privileges of the WAA, e.g. holding office, attending special meetings, voting, exhibiting, etc., shall be limited to paid up members.

Section 3. 20 or more paid members in attendance at the member's meeting shall constitute a quorum.

#### **Article VII. Executive Committee**

Section 1. The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the WAA, the chairpersons of the committees and the one immediate past president.

Section 2. The duties of the Executive Committee shall be to:

- A. Transact necessary business in the interval between WAA meetings and such other business as may be referred to it by the membership.
- B. Present verbal reports to the membership at regular member's meetings.

### **MAJOR CHANGES:**

#### **Article VII.**

##### **A. Committees**

Section 1. Programming Committee shall:

- A. Plan, organize and schedule activities
- B. Schedule Monthly programs
- C. Initiate payment of guest speakers
- D. Submit a yearly budget to board for planning purposes

Section 2. Publicity/Public Relations Committee shall:

- A. Maintain liaison between the WAA and other organizations and services.
- B. Assure events are covered and information is available to be sent to the media and other communication media.
- C. Work with the *Sketchbook* editor to assure 10 issues are published each calendar year.
- D. Arrange for monthly pick up for processing to members
- E. Committee will be responsible for arranging special events such as picnics and parties, whenever required.
- F. Committee will be responsible for any other general membership publications to be completed in a timely fashion, including but not limited to: yearly Directory, etc.
- G. Assure that the WAA website and Facebook are current
- H. Work with First Vice President to send out prospectus for shows
- I. Work with the Librarian and Historian and assure needs of the organization are being met
- J. Submit a yearly budget to the board for approval

Section 3. Membership Committee shall:

- A. Promote membership
- B. Maintain a membership list
  - a. Alert Publication committee of any new members to be announced in the Sketchbook
- C. Be responsible for sending out membership cards when required
- D. Notify the Publication chairperson when new cards are required to be printed
- E. Send out reminders for dues and work with Publicity/Public Relations Committee to assure notices are sent to members for dues at the end of the year.
- F. Inform the Exhibition Committee of members in good standing and eligible to participate in exhibits
- G. Submit a yearly budget to the board for approval

Section 4. Art/Education Committee shall:

- A. Assure Publicity/Public Relations Committee is aware of scheduled workshop activities.
- B. Notify Publicity/Public Relations Committee of any additional monthly activities
- C. Be a liaison for Workshop, Life class and Portrait class activities as well as any future art education events or classes
- D. Submit a yearly budget to the board for approval

## **B. Coordinators**

Section 1 Wednesday Workshop Coordinator shall:

- A. Submit yearly paperwork for use of facility
- B. Submit workshop topics to Publication Committee for Sketchbook inputs
- C. Arrange for monitoring of sessions and clean up of room at the completion of workshops

Section 2 Life Class Coordinator shall:

- A. Submit yearly paperwork for use of facility
- B. Submit workshop topics to Publication Committee for Sketchbook inputs
- C. Arrange for monitoring of sessions and clean up of room at the completion of workshops

Section 3 Portrait and Costume Class Coordinator shall:

- A. Submit yearly paperwork for use of facility
- B. Submit workshop topics to Publication Committee for Sketchbook inputs
- C. Arrange for monitoring of sessions and clean up of room at the completion of workshops

Section 4 Sunshine Coordinator shall:

- A. Be responsible for send out acknowledgements to members with life changing events
- B. Request reimbursement for materials used for this function
- C. Notify President of any acknowledgements sent out for publication in Sketchbook

Section 5 Library Coordinator shall:

- A. Be responsible for maintaining catalog of available books/documents
- B. Be responsible for maintaining members check out of documents
- C. Notify President of any changes or requirement which might be sent out to the members via Sketchbook notice

Section 6 Sketchbook Editor Coordinator shall:

- A. Be responsible for gathering information on members/shows/opportunities for publication
- B. Prepare 10 issues per year
  - a. Combine December and January issues and April and June issues
- C. Submit reimbursement form to treasurer for payment for completing each Sketchbook
- D. Notify the Publication Committee of completion so arrangements can be made to pick up Sketchbook at printers

Section 7 Publication Pickup Coordinator shall:

- A. Arrange for pick up of Sketchbook at printer
- B. Work with members to prepare Sketchbook for mailing
  - a. Request labels and stamps from Membership Committee
  - b. Deliver Sketchbook to Post Office

Section 8 Hospitality Coordinator shall:

- A. Be responsible for assuring refreshments are available at each member meeting by soliciting members to volunteer

Section 9 Historian Coordinator shall:

- A. Be responsible for maintaining records and files documenting organizations history

Section 10 Nominating Coordinator shall:

- A. Be appointed by the President at least three months prior to elections. The chairperson will select a committee of five members, two to be selected from the Executive Committee and three from the general membership.
- B. The Nominating Committee will present a slate of the candidates for elective office to the membership.

## **Article VIII. Exhibitions**

Section 1. All work must be original

Section 2. All paintings must be suitably framed and wired.

Section 3. The sizes of art works shall be limited by the space allocation of the gallery

Section 4. Art works shall be clearly labeled with title, artist's name, address, phone number, price and medium.

Section 5. The WAA assumes no responsibility for work lost or damaged.

Section 6. When designated, a commission of no more than 20% will be collected by the WAA. NJ Sales Tax shall be collected when sales are handled by the WAA.

## **Article IX. Amendments**

Amendments to these bylaws may be made at a monthly business meeting by a two-thirds majority vote, so long as a quorum is in attendance and the membership has been informed of such action and has been given advance copies of the amended bylaws for review. Amendments must be read at two consecutive meetings and may be voted upon at the second meeting.

## **Article X. Dissolution of the Willingboro Art Alliance**

Said organization is organized exclusively for educational purposes, including for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code or corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

No part of the net earning of the organization shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the organization shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in the purpose clause hereof. No substantial part of the activities of the organization shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation and the organization shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of this document, the organization shall not carry on any other purposes not permitted to be carried on (a) by an organization exempt from federal income tax under section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or (b) by an organization, contributions to which are deductible under section 170 (c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

Upon the dissolution of the organization, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose. Any such assets not disposed of shall be disposed of by the Court of Common Pleas of Burlington County where the organization is located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

**WAA OFFICERS - 2011**

President	RJ Haas
First Vice President & Exhibition Chair	Donna Fascenda
Scholarship Chair	Joyce McAfee
Recording Secretary	Virginia Ibarra
Corresp. Secretary	Frances Morrison
Treasurer	Elfriede Lipscomb
Past President	Donna Fascenda

**WAA CHAIRPERSONS**

Membership	Shirley Cohen
Programming	Mary Gayliard
Art Education	Ben Cohen
Public Relations/Publicity	Carolyn Burke

**WAA COORDINATORS**

Wednesday Workshop	Henry R. Kornstedt
	Ben Cohen
Life Class	Marcia Steinbock
Costume/Portrait Class	Denise McDaniel
JFK Hallway Shows	Joanne Sherman
Sketchbook Editor	Donna Fascenda
Sketchbook Pickup	William Ruspantine
Hospitality	Betty Kornstedt
Sunshine	Barbara Alterman
Library	Bill Devine
	Rene Yohannan

If you have news, email Donna Fascenda at [dfascenda@comcast.net](mailto:dfascenda@comcast.net) or call (609) 859-0607



**P.O. Box 2276  
Willingboro, NJ 08046**

**FIRST  
CLASS**